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Liberty Mall is a two-story rectangular Flemish bond brick house, 60 f wide 
and 46 ! deep. It has a two-story brick rear ell 2/1 f 2-1/2" wide and 43 f 
8" long. The east or front elevation facing IViJldnson Street is five bays 
wide. The central three bays are advanced 3-V4 inches from the main plane 
of the elevation. The house has a gable roof with a pediment cross gable 
the width of the advanced central section. There are two symmetrically 
placed interior brick chimneys with pronounced chimney caps. These two 
chimneys are not at the roof ridge but rise out of the rear roof slope near 
the ridge. The east front has an excellently scaled and executed modillion 
cornice with a dentil band below the modillions. A simpler cornice continues 
across the gable ends of the house and the west elevation. The house has 
a molded brick water table and a belt course four brick courses in depth.

The entrance door has double doors and a semicircular glazed transom. It 
is surrounded by a restrained wooden frontispiece with flanking Tuscan 
engaged colonettes carrying on entablature with an underco.rated frieze. 
The central window bay in the second floor is the most outstanding feature 
of tiie house. It is a fully developed pallodian window that extends down 
to the floor level. Above, in the pediment of the cross gable, is a 
semicircular lunette with Gothic sash and a keystone. Other windows have 
six over six'pane double hung sash, molded wooden sills, widely splayed 
brick jack arches and shutters.

The house has a central hall plan with two principal rooms on either side. 
The entrance hall is separated from the stair hall by a carefully designed 
elliptical arch with keystone. The door and window trim in the principal 
rooms has a dog ear motif and fluted keystones. There is also a molded 
chair rail and restrained wooden mantel pieces in the Federal style.
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TATEMENY OF SIGNIFICANCE:

Liberty Hall was built ir Frankfort, Kentucky, by the Hon. John Brown 
between 1796 and 1800. Brown was a leading lawyer and politician of the 
area and was instrumental in gaining statehood for Kentucky in 1792.

The house that he built for himself in the new capital of the state was 
patterened on the finest Federal architecture that John Brown had seen in 
the Hast, especially Philadelphia. When the house was finished, Brown had 
created one of the most outstanding examples of the style anywhere in the 
country. Liberty Hall is a two story gable roof brick house laid in 
Flourish bond , The five bay cast front has a pediment cross gable the width 
of the three centrals bays* These three bays arc slightly advanced forward 
of the principal plane of this elevation. The central bay of the ground 
floor is the entrance doorway with a semicircular transom and wooden 
frontispiece. Above it on the second floor is a finely scaled pal Indian 
window. Across the entire east /front is a. ^el 1 executed modi 11 ion cornice 
with dentil band. The interior has a central hall plan and subdued Federal 
trim , The great achievement of Liberty Hall is not so much that it was 
built on the frontier, but that, in spite of its extremely remote location, 
it is one of the most perfect examples of Federal domestic architecture 
ever realized in the country.

Liberty Hall, Frankfort, Kentucky, was built from ca. 1796 to ca. 1800 by 
Hon. John Brown (1757-1837), a leading lawyer and politican of early 
Kentucky. From 1784 to 1792 he was actively involved in the movement to 
separate Kentucky from Virginia and to bring it into the Union as a 
separate state. He also served as one of the two first Senators from 
Kentucky to the United States Senate. The house remained in the Brown 
family until 1955.

Over the years certain minor changes were made to the building by the Brown 
family. Very soon after the house was finished the main reception room on 
the second floor appears to have been subdivided into bedroom space. The 
attic stairs were altered in 1833; a bathroom was constructed on the 
ground floor by enclosing one end of the back porch in 1837, A cornice was 
added to the present dining room in 18&/I and the space under the windows 
in the two front parlors were decorated with simple panels in 1908 and 1918
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Since 1955 the house has been the property of the Liberty Hall Association 
who maintain the house as an. historic house museum open to the public. There 
was a minor fire in the central hall on October 25, 1965, the damage from 
which has been repaired. The original hickory shingle roof has been replaced 
by slate.
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